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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), cash fiows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act., read with [Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqgularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audttor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We
conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2017, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracts incfuding derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

fii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note 26 to these Ind AS financial statementy as
to the holding of Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 as well as
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016.
Based on our enquiries, test check of the books of account and other details maintained by the
Company and relying on the management representation regarding the holdklg and nature of cash
transactions, including Specified Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures are in accordance with
the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300
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per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: April 27, 2017
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading *‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date

Re: Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited (‘the Company”)

@ @ The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

© According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

@n The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

w) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any
goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(viiXa)  The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, income-tax, service tax, and other statutory dues applicable to it. The
provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and
value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(viixb)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(viiXc)  According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax are as follows:

Name of | Nature of the | Amount** Period to which | Forum where the dispute is
the dues (Rs) the amount | pending
statute relates
Income Income Tax | 435,770 AY 2011-12 CIT(Appeals)
Tax Act, | Demand
1961
(viii) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial

institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments) and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.
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xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

xiv)

xv)

(xvi)

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
I Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E / E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2017
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
dlrectors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

authorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

cial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro! over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Ghartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 27, 2017
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Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited

CIN: U74140MH2008PTC179360
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 inRs.
As at As at As at
Note 31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016 1-Apr-2015
| ASSETS Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 7,951,617 6,370,487 4,603,002
(b) Financial Assets: Loans aA - - 4,091,107
(c) Advance tax (net) 5 22,271,252 16,091,762 11,210,442
(d} Other Non Current 6A - 374,366
30,222,869 22,462,249 20,278,917
{2) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 352,751,412 341,193,257 293,361,578
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 635,903 1,712,422 2,261,744
(iii) Loans 4B 21,135,245 10,692,123 4,299,985
(b) Other current assets 6B 8,022,519 4,103,236 3,168,941
382,545,079 357,701,038 303,092,248
Total assets 412,767,948 380,163,287 323,371,165
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 9 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000
{b) Other Equity 10 313,301,226 294,009,219 246,261,478
Total equity 348,301,226 329,009,219 281,261,478
LIABILITIES
{1} Non-current liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liahilities (net) 1,488,875 4,915,059 2,193,464
1,488,875 4,915,059 2,193,464
(2} Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities:
Trade Payables 11 51,851,029 32,037,678 24,964,852
(b) Other Current Liabilities 12 2,199,968 3,448,977 1,441,731
{c) Provisions 13 8,926,849 10,752,354 13,509,640
62,977,847 46,239,009 39,916,223
Total liabilities 64,466,722 51,154,068 42,109,687
Total Equity and Liabilities 412,767,948 380,163,287 323,371,165
Significant Accounting Policies Refer Note : 2

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our attached Report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICA! Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya Eirla Capital Advisors Private Limited
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Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai, April 27, 2017
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Partner
Membership No. 102102
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Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Continuing operations
I Revenue from Operations
Il Other Income

Total Income

Il EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses
Total Expenses
v Profit/ (Loss) before tax from continuing opertions

V  Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Write Back of Excess Provision for Tax Related to Earlier Years

MAT Credit
Deferred Tax

Total Tax Expenses

y| Net Profit / (Loss) for the period

VIl Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods :

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on retirement benefits

Net Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods

Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax attributable
to:

Profit for the year

Attributable to: Equity holders of the parent

Other Comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to: Equity holders of the parent

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Attributable to: Equity holders of the parent

Earnings per equity share for continuing operations

Basic, computed on the basis of profit from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the parent

Diluted,computed on the basis of profit from continuing
operations attributable to equity holders of the parent

In Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended
Note 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Ind AS Ind AS
14 165,194,698 203,257,647
15 28,520,481 22,263,821
193,715,179 225,521,468
16 141,555,273 122,363,950
2,760,514 2,193,306
17 33,648,676 33,035,660
177,964,463 157,592,916
15,750,716 67,928,552
2,170,260 16,741,388
(345,840) -
(1,969,205) -
(3,426,183) 2,721,595
(3,570,968) 19,462,983
19,321,684 48,465,569
(29,678) (717,828)
(29,678) (717,828)
19,292,006 47,747,741
19,321,684 48,465,569
(29,678) (717,828)
19,292,006 47,747,741
18
5.51 13.64
551 13.64

Significant Accounting Policies Refer Note : 2
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our attached Report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Adityx Bjrla Capital Advisors Private Limited

Ajpy Stinivasan

L -
L\ ' Director Director
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Partner Sunil K Jain Piyush Eudh_--—""

Membership No. 102102
Mumbai, April 27, 2017

Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai, April 27, 2017
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Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Equity share Retained Total Equity
capital earnings
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Current year :
Opening balance as on 01 April 2016 35,000,000 294,009,219 329,009,219
Addition during the period - 19,321,684 19,321,684
Comprehensive gain/(loss) during the period (29,678) (29,678)
Closing balance as on 31 March 2017 35,000,000 313,301,226 348,301,226
For the year ended 31 March 2016
Equity share Retained Total Equity
capital earnings
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Previous year :
Opening balance as on 01 April 2015 35,000,000 246,261,478 281,261,478
Addition during the period 48,465,569 48,465,569
Comprehensive gain/(loss) during the period (717,828) (717,828)
Closing balance as on 31 March 2016 35,000,000 294,009,219 329,009,219

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our attached Report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership No. 102102
Mumbai, April 27, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited

jay Srinivasan

Director
(DIN:~121181)
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Sunil K Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai, April 27, 2017

H RaviEumar

Director
(DIN: - 121181)
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Company Secretary
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Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March,2017

Amount in Rs.

In Rs.
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31/03/2017 31/03/2016

Amount in Rs.

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit {Loss) before tax and prior period item
Adjustments for :
Divident reinvestment
Depreciation/ amortisation

Profit on sale of Assets
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on retirement benefits

Deferred Rent Expense
Dividend Income
Interest Income

Misc. Income
Profit on Sale of Investment

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities
{Increase)/decrease in loans and advances
Cash from operating activities
Tax deducted at source
Net cash from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Dividend from mutual fund units

15,750,716

13,210,232
2,760,514
587,330
(29,678)
374,366
(13,210,232)
(1,334,881)
(364,282)
(13,611,086)

4,132,999

16,738,840
(14,324,719)
6,547,120
(8,000,618)
(1,453,498)

(13,210,232)

67,928,552

13,192,466
2,193,306

(717,828)
374,367
(13,192,466)

(373,141)

(8,698,214)

60,707,042

6,322,785
329,663
67,359,490
(24,814,554)
42,544,936

(13,192,466)

Mumbai, April 27, 2017

Sale of fixed assets 4,311,021 E
Purchase of fixed assets (5,986,974) (3,960,791)
Purchase of investment {Net} 2,052,932 (39,133,466)
Dividend Received 13,210,232 13,192,466
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 376,979 (43,094,257)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B) (1,076,519) (549,321}
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 1,712,422 2,261,744
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 635,903 1,712,422
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
FOR S.R.BATLIBO! & CO.LLP Adity Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.301003E/E300005 VM
Srlmvasan H Ravikumar
‘ ‘2,_——-—— Director Director
: (\\'C'W = (DIN 12118,1) (DIN - 280010)

\ \ )
per Shrawan Jalan A ‘v,.\.ru'\f \(NVJ\(\ ) 4 )\)\\ }\}’V
Partner Suml Kjain Plyush Shah
Membership No0.102102 Chief Financial Officer C/omparfy Secretary

Mumbai, April 27, 2017
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+ Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited

Notes Forming part of Financial Statements as on 315t March 2017

Corporate Information

Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on February 22, 2008. The
Company is a Private Limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and a
wholly owned subsidiary of Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited and the ultimate holding is Aditya Birla Nuvo
Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at One India Bulls Centre, S. B. Marg, Eiphinstone Road,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India. The main object of the Company is to provide financial advisory services and
management services and to carry on business of advising and managing venture capital funds. The Company is
the Investment Manager to the Aditya Birla Private Equity-Fund | and Aditya Birla Private Equity — Sunrise Fund.
Both these are Domestic Venture Capital Funds registered with SEBI.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors by resolution passed in the
meeting dated April 27, 2017.

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The company is a subsidiary of Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited which is a listed company with networth of over Rs. 500
crores and required to adopt IND AS in terms of rule of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015. All subsidiaries of such companies are also required to adopt IND AS as prescribed under said Rules.

The Company has prepared financial statements in accordance with indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') under
the historic cost convention on the accrual basis except financial instrument which are measured at fair value,
and the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 (to the extend notified). The IND AS are prescribed under section
133 of the act read with rule of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. The Company has applied Ind AS starting
from financial year beginning on or after 1st April, 2016. These financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule Il of the Companies’ Act 2013. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to 12 months for the purpose of current/non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.2 Summary of Significant accounting policies
(a) Use of estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although, these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and Capital Work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price including import
duties and non refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates including directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. All other repair and
{naintenance costs are recognised in the statement ofﬁr@ftt\and loss as incurred. The present value of the
pected cost for the decommissioning of the as;é g’ﬁé’-&t‘sﬁw is included in the cost of the respective
1#4ket if the recognition criteria for a provmonfre.met Coﬂﬂ \}ase of long term construction projects

/dgtludes borrowing cost capitalized in accordanc wrfh”@bmp,aﬂg swgcounting policy. -\/
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Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under
development as at the reporting date.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method using the rates
arrived as per estimates made by the management supported by technical assessment which coincides with
the the useful lives of assets as specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 , except for the assets
specified below. The Company has used the following useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to
provide depreciation.

Following rates are used to provide depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment:-

Useful life prescribed by
Asset Category Schedule Il of The Estimated useful life
Companies Act, 2013
Furniture and fixtures 10 years 4 years
Office Equipment’s 5years 4 years
Vehicles 6 years 4 years
Computer 3 years 4 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized

Assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less are written off in the year of purchase Useful life of assets different from
those prescribed in Schedule 11 has been estimated by management supported by technical assessment.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other
expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

The Company has elected to apply previous GAAP carrying amount of its property, plant and equipments as
on 1st April 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS) as deemed cost for the purpose of accounting standard Ind AS
16.

(c} Translation in foreign currency items

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the spot rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Exchange difference on settlement or translation of all other monetary items is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign
currency duly translated using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction.

{d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company

and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is

measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually

defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Service

{M—:Fh tax is not received by the Company on its own aceount: ﬂather itis tax collected on the services rendered by
"':U = Ye Company on behalf of the government. %f@yﬁnmy H\LF excluded from revenue.
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The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised
Rendering of services

Revenue from services is recognised as they are rendered based on agreements / arrangements with the
concerned parties and recognised net of Service Tax.

Dividends
Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is established.
Interest Income

For all Financial Instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Disposal of Investments

On disposal of an investment the difference between carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged
or credited to the statement of Profit and Loss using weighted average cost.

Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and superannuation scheme are defined
contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
fund, pension fund and superannuation scheme. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund, pension fund and superannuation scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the schemes for service received hefore the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits
under these plans are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial
valuation is carried out for each plan using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses for
both defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit
and loss.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date.

The Company treats accumulated leave as a non-contributory defined benefit arrangement providing
benefits expressed in terms of a multiple of final monthly salary. It is carried as a current liability since it is to
be utilized over a maximum period of one year in terms of the leave policy of the Company. The leave which
gets availed whilst in service is valued on employee’s CTC basis whereas the [eave encashment is valued on
the basis of the definition prescribed in the Company’s leave encashment policy. Based on the above
principles, an actuarial valuation is made to determine the liability the Company needs to hold on its balance
sheet date.

Remeasurements, comprising of gc}a@:gial\%ins and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
cluded in net interest on thgﬁ@t« ".ffﬁeﬁ EQefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts

mdluded in net interest on th{%";jfi'{z definea“*{:‘fg\h;ﬁﬂt liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
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with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

(f) Taxation
Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the
current accounting year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
MAT credit is recognised as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT
Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying
amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlat|on to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

(g) Operating Lease

o A lease is classified at the lnceptlon__g,aig as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
\;ﬁﬂ_‘m Q;F‘Baj to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
A I.-- I\_ ___;)\ 4

é‘;‘ {f" 1\-.‘_, iinance leases are capﬁahsed’&t;l’he comm.‘em{\&ment of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
\'r_ ’-%\\ /= |kased property or, if lower, % hé4p? AL r'.r"|:[|e of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
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(h)

(i)

: . AR SR
. Lhis category is the most rg}év‘a{nt,—té'\ﬁ!e\

apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Contingent liabilities & Provisions:

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

1) Financial instruments at amortised cost

2) Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

3) Financial instruments, Mutual Fund and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
4) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial instruments at amortised cost
A ‘Financial instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP}) on the-principal amount outstanding.

ompany. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
f.;_._L {isequently measured at ﬁ’fﬁﬁg@jﬁf‘cised cosk: 1\ng the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
i@lculated by taking into a'coprflﬂlamgg‘i,s czu t or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
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integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and
other receivables.

Financial Instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘Financial Instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial Instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {(OCl). However,
the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in
the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI Financial Instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Financial Instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for Financial Instruments. Any Financial Instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a Financial Instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not
designated any Financial Instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial Instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments and Mutual Funds at FVTPL

All equity investments and Mutual fund in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments, Mutual fund which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, Mutual Fund, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments, Mutual fund included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company'’s balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred.its.rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

Lits.Cig!

rough arrangement, it evalu tfé@j’sﬂéﬁﬂ}f"-'v-hat extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
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the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a hasis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

Lease receivables under ind AS 17

. Trade receivables

Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

oo o0 o

For recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables; and all lease receivables resulting from
transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17 the Company follows ‘simplified approach’

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

1. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

2. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortise: 'aﬁtasg\contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is

.resented as an allowance, i.e., as 3 ﬁfeg- PATY, of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
'\“3/5 ie allowance reduces the net caffving amount- 'DJ!,‘;.,txl the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
,'ufl t reduce impairment aIIowance&ru;:uT th E}“e,g:x;oss idar [ylng amount.
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(i)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet,
i.e. as a liability.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated
impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to
enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liahilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and In the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the tiability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. The Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
e inthe absence of a principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiability

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Company.

. T Soye x“\. . i g
~FRfair value of an asset or a liability i e‘ésmmng the assumptions that market participants would use

E pricing the asset or liability, aslglfrr.f}iﬁg that rrwq-lc\ut participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2-  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3-  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

(k) Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part
of the Company's cash management.

(1) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(m) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(n) Recent accounting pronouncements
Standard issued but not yet effective

The standard issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company Financial statements is
. disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt this standard when it become effective.

i‘;% JeAmendments to ind AS 107 Dlsclosu{eim ﬁv§‘;§\
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The amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April. The directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including
industry-specific guidance. The core principle of the new standard is for companies to recognize revenue to
depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that is,
payment) to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new
standard also will result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were
not previously addressed comprehensively (for example, service revenue and contract modifications) and
improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements.
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NOTE: 3
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT In Rs.
b Imt:iii/z}:r?:its FUF?)i(ttLerZ& Co:r?:::rf ¢ EqSiTr:\eent SRIES il
Cost or Valuation
As at 1st April, 2015 227,627 29,696 1,004,090 82,644 3,258,946 4,603,003
Additions 2 260,621 78,761 3,621,409 3,960,791
Deletions = - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2016 227,627 29,696 1,264,711 161,405 6,880,355 8,563,794
Additions : 29,510 94,944 2 5,862,520 5,986,974
Deletions = - 22,275 - 2,962,726 2,985,001
As at 31st March, 2017 227,627 59,206 1,337,380 161,405 9,780,149 11,565,767
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1st April, 2015 - = - - -
For the year 227,627 16,986 370,526 34,772 1,543,395 2,193,306
Deletions - - : =
As at 31st March, 2016 227,627 16,986 370,526 34,772 1,543,395 2,193,306
For the year - - 349,239 27,000 2,180,253 2,556,492
Deletions - - 19,230 . 1,116,418 1,135,648
As at 31st March, 2017 227,627 16,986 700,535 61,772 2,607,230 3,614,150
Net Book Value as at 31st March, 2016 - 12,710 894,185 126,633 5,336,960 6,370,488
Net Book Value as at 31st March, 2017 - 42,220 636,845 99,633 7,172,919 7,951,617

The Company has elected to apply previous GAAP carrying amount of its property, plant and equipments as on 1st April 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS) as
deemed cost for the purpose of accounting standard ind AS 16.
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NOTE: 4A
NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Unsecured, Considered Good, except otherwise stated)- Held at
amortised cost

Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good

NOTE: 5

Advance Tax {net)
Advance tax
MAT Credit Entitlement

NOTE: 6A
Other Non Current Assets

Deferred Rent Expenses

NOTE: 7

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS
- Unquoted
- Held at FVTPL

2,093,167.335 Units (Previous year 2,115,163.185) of Birla
Sunlife Savings Fund Daily Dividend Reinvestment Scheme

938,257.056 units (previous year 938,257.056) of Birla Sun life
Income Plus - Growth - Direct plan

Nil units (previous year 1,155,201.294) of Birla Sun life Short
Term Fund - Growth - Regular Plan

Nil {previous year Nil) of Birla Sun Life FTP Series

275,155.721 units (previous year Nil) of Birla Sun life Cash Plus -
Growth - Direct Plan "

in Rs.
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016 1-Apr-2015
Ind AS Ind AS ind AS
- - 4,091,107
L = 4,091,107
20,302,047 16,091,762 11,210,442
1,969,205 - -
22,271,252 16,091,762 11,210,442
374,366
- - 374,366
209,938,823 212,144,945 118,105,955
70,876,126 63,343,235 58,961,100
- 65,705,077 60,446,023
= - 54,848,500
71,936,464 =
352,751,412 341,193,257 293,361,578

= Represents units purchased on 31st March 2017 by way of switch from another scheme of the Mutual Fund and evidenced

by Fund Statement of next working day.

NOTE: 8
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with Banks

Current Accounts

Cash on Hand

613,181 1,700,912 2,259,193
22,722 11,510 2,551
635,903 1,712,422 2,261,744




NOTE: 4B

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Unsecured, Considered Good, except otherwise stated)- Held at
amortised cost

Security Deposit

Unsecured, Considered Good 4,876,300 4,464,249 .
Others
Considered Good 16,258,945 6,227,874 4,299,985
21,135,245 10,692,123 4,299,985

Other Current Assets includes an amount of Rs. 1,57,33,110/- in FY 2016-17,(Previous year Rs.56,76,129) being initial
expenses reasonably attributable for an upcoming funds (Fund Ill) which will be recoverable from Fund IIl. This comprises
expenses for startup of the fund (inclusive of the costs incurred towards the incorporation of the fund, travel expenses
incured in fund raising, setting up and offering costs, legal fees, accounting fees, professional expenses incurred.

NOTE: 6B

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
VAT, Other Taxes Recoverable, and Dues from Government

Unsecured, Considered Good 5,747,543 1,964,652 1,290,612
Prepaid Expenses 2,274,976 1,764,218 1,503,963
Deferred Rent Expense . 374,366 374,366

8,022,519 4,103,236 3,168,941
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As at As at
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
Ind AS Ind AS
NOTE: 10
RETAINED EARNINGS
Opening Balance as per last audited Financial 294,009,219 246,261,478
Statement
Surplus in Profit and loss accounts 19,321,684 48,465,569
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year-
- Remeasurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit (29,677) (717,827)
plans (See Note 28)
313,301,226 294,009,219
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NOTE: 11

TRADE PAYABLES
For salaries, wages, bonus and other employee benefits

To Micro Small & Medium Enterprises
Other than Micro Small & Medium Enterprises

NOTE: 12

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory Dues
Others

NOTE: 13
PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefit (see Note 28)

Provision for Leave encashment

Provision for Gratuity

In Rs.
As at As at As at
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016 1-Apr-2015
Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS
45,639,862 25,230,334 21,012,899
6,211,167 6,807,344 3,951,953
51,851,029 32,037,678 24,964,852
2,199,968 3,448,977 1,305,046
- 136,685
2,199,968 3,448,977 1,441,731
8,718,274 9,001,524 13,509,640
208,576 1,750,830 -
8,926,850 10,752,354 13,509,640
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NOTE: 14
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
SALE OF SERVICES

Other Financial Services

NOTE: 15
OTHER INCOME

Interest on Income Tax refund
Interest Income on amortised cost
Other Interest Income

Dividend Income on Investment -Held at FVTPL
Net Gain on Sale of Investments -Held at FVTPL
MTM Gain on Investment-Held at FVTPL
Miscellaneous Income

NOTE: 16

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

NOTE: 17
OTHER EXPENSES
Rent
Repairs & Maintenance of:

Buildings

Others
Insurance
Profession Tax
Rates and Taxes
Advertisement
Travelling & Conveyance
Bank Charges
Information Technology Expenses
Directors' Fees
Printing and Stationery
Communication Expenses
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Postage Expenses
Electricity Charges
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} Expenses
Legal and Professional Expenses
Auditors Remunerations - Refer Note 19
Security & Housekeeping Expenses
Membership & Subscription
Recruitment expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

In Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Ind AS fnd AS
165,194,698 203,257,647
165,194,698 203,257,647
922,830
412,051 373,141
13,210,232 13,192,466
5,863,164 4,905,525
7,747,922 3,792,689
364,282 -
28,520,481 22,263,821
129,561,535 109,148,506
9,719,761 8,416,384
2,273,977 4,799,060
141,555,273 122,363,950
8,798,176 9,139,441
855,732 852,892
489,998 326,286
1,568,899 1,368,741
2,500 2,500
281,181 104,973
104,339 90,317
1,453,425 2,960,783
1,544 1,810
188,287 12,112
567,825 600,750
478,145 468,586
786,880 614,936
447,330 =
28,862 21,811
1,246,302 1,362,940
1,432,925 1,600,000
8,213,258 4,062,631
1,140,160 1,082,620
972,343 1,008,638
1,037,721 3,559,087
891,534 1,591,823
2,661,312 2,201,984
33,648,676 33,035,660
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NOTE: 18

DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS) 33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per Share (EPS) is calculated as under:
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent:
Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent for basic earnings
Less: Preference Dividend and Tax thereon
Profit attributable to equity holders of Parent for the effect of dilution

Weighted-average Number of Equity Shares for calculation of Basic EPS
Basic EPS (Rs.)

Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations

Continuing and Discontinued operations
Weighted-average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

Weighted-average number of Equity Shares for calculation of Diluted EPS
Diluted EPS (Rs.)

Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations
Continuing and Discontinued operations

Nominal Value of Shares {Rs.)

In Rs.
As at As at
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016

19,292,006 47,747,741

19,292,006 47,747,741

(A) 19,292,006 47,747,741
(8) 3,500,000 3,500,000
5.51 13.64

5.51 13.64

3,500,000 3,500,000

(€ 3,500,000 3,500,000

(A/C)

5.51 13.64
5.51 13.64

10.00 10.00
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In Rs.
As at As at As at
Numbers 31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016 1-Apr-2015
NOTE: 9 Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paidup:
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 3,500,000 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000
35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000
1)  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016
. No. ipti
i DesEription Equity Shares Equity Shares
1 [Number of shares outstanding at the 3,500,000 3,500,000
beginning of the period @ Rs. 10/-
2 {No of Shares Qutstanding at the end 3,500,000 3,500,000
of the period @ Rs. 10/- each
2} Term/Right Attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution to all preferential holders. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by the shareholders.
3) As per records of the Company, including register of shareholder/members and other declarations received from the shareholders regarding
beneficial interst, the above shareholding represents both legal & beneficial ownership of shares.
4) The entire share capital is held by Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited, the holding company and its nominees.
5) Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 per cent shares and the number of shares held are as under:

As at 31st March, 2017

As at 31st March, 2016

As at 1st April, 2015

% of Total Paid-

% of Total Paid-

with its nominees

Sr. No. Name of Shareholder No of Shares - % of Total Paid-u
0o Held| UP Equity Share| No of Shares Held | l:ity S::aare (?al itapl No of Shares Held up Preference
Capital q p Share Capital
g, |Adiva Birla Rifiancial, 1sefyicet, {Limited 3,500,000 100.00% 3,500,000 100.00% 3,500,000 100.00%




19. During the year, the Company has paid following amount to statutory auditors:
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Audit Fees 8,50,000 8,50,000
Tax Audit 1,00,000 1,00,000
Other Certification Fees 1,25,000 -
Reimbursement of expenses 65,160 1,32,620
Total 11,40,160 10,82,620

20. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company, no amounts have fallen due for payment to suppliers who have
registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 as at March 31, 2017.

21. Segment Reporting

Ind AS 108 introduces a ‘management approach’ to identifying and measuring the financial performance of an entity’s
operating segments. The Company's operations is to render management services. There is no segment wise internal
reporting which is used by the Management for taking key decision.

22. Related Party Disclosure

Name and relation with parties where control exits:-
Ultimate Holding Company : Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited
Holding Company : Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited

Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:-
Fellow Subsidiary B Aditya Birla Trustee Company Private Limited
g ABCAP Trustee Company Private Limited
Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Company Limited
Aditya Birla Finance Limited

Joint Venture/Associate of Parent IDEA Cellular Limited
Company : Birla Sunlife Asset Management Company Limited
Key Managerial Personnel’s : Mr. D. Muthukumaran (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sandeep Bhat, (Chief Financial Officer) upto 31/03/2017
Mr. Sunil K Jain, (Chief Financial Officer) w.e.f. 01/04/2017
Mr. Piyush Shah, Company Secretary

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties
for the relevant financial year:
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Sr. Particulars Year ended Year ended Ason
No. 31st March 17 31st March 16 1% April 15
A | Holding Company / Ultimate Holding Company
Transactions during the year
Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited
{(a) Employee Benefit Expenses 7,275,764 6,189,802 -
(b) Other Expenditure 2,718,255 2,059,499 -
Balance outstanding
Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited - Equity Share 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000
Capital
Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited - Payable 2,010,488 1,301,787 772,447
B Fellow Subsidiaries
Brief description Company & item wise:
Transactions during the year
Aditya Birla Trustee Company Private Limited
Reimbursement of Statutory Dues paid 50,363 142,568 -
Aditya Birla Financial Shared Services Limited
(a) Employee Benefit Expenses 1,526,162 1,145,312
{b) Reimbursement of expenses 782,261 1,246,561 -
(c) Reimbursement of Prepaid 649,126 -
Balance outstanding
- Aditya Birla Financial Shared Services Limited 614,109 345,506 136,684
Prepaid to be amortise
- Aditya Birla Financial Shared Services Limited 41,733 - -
Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Limited
Insurance premium paid 109,448 120,917 -
Outstanding amount Payable - - -
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co Ltd
Group Deposit GMC & Top Up 485,190 - -
Outstanding amount payable - - -
Aditya Birla Finance Limited
Reimbursement of expense 88,000 = .
Others:
Idea Cellular Limited
Reimbursement of expenses 440,502 355,820 -
Outstanding amount Payable 25,825 28,883 30,756
PN
Birla Sun life Asset Management’&'}épany
Reimbursement on transfer of EhwkouﬂéMBAl 13,362 ”
Outstanding amount Payable "K\ ) - - {13,362)
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23. Capital Commitment, Long Term Contract & Pending Litigations
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for amounts to Rs. NIL
{(Previous year NIL).

The Company has a process whereby periodically review all long term contracts, if any, are assessed for material
forseeable losses. During the year, the company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts.

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company primarily by the proceedings pending with
Tax authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its financial results at
March 31, 2017.

24. Operating Leases (Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended March 31, For the year ended March

Particulars 2017 31, 2016

Lease payments recognized in the profit and loss 87,98,176 91,39,441

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(Amount in Rupees)

DaiEeabs For the year ended March 31, For the year ended March
2017 31, 2016

Within one year 84,71,700 84,71,700

After one year but not more than five years 1,69,43,400 -

Lease payments recognized in the profit and loss NIL -

Lease for office premises has expired on March 31, 2017 and has since been renewed w.e.f. April 01, 2017.

25. Current Tax
Current tax for the year of Rs. 21,70,260/- (Previous Year Rs. 16,741,388).

Income Tax Disclosure ¢ ;

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are:
Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss Section

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
| Current income tax;
Current income tax charge 2,170,260 16,741,388
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (345,840) -
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (5,395,388) 2,721,595
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss {3,570,968) 19,462,983

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2016 and
31 March 2017:

nPOVISR, |  31March 2017 31 March 2016

A 'I;"‘ Y ;Fi‘!-q INR INR
Accounting Profit before tax from conti’”'njﬁllﬁg%rqyag;gtj‘p?';'{; ||| 7t 15,750,715 67,928,552
e 18] Ol S 20.389% 33.063%

Enacted tax rates in India q

Accounting profit before income tax
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At India's statutory income tax rate of 20.389% (3i Mar 2016: 33.063%) 3,211,396 22,459,247

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (345,840) =

Other non-deductible expenses (1,041,137) (5,717,859)

DTA/ DTL (3,426,183) 2,721,595

MAT entitlement (1,969,205) -

At the effective income tax rate of 20.389% (31 Mar 2016: 33.063%)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (3,570,968) 19,462,983

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Balance Sheet
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
INR INR INR

Deferred tax Assets

Leave Encashment (2,402,102) (2,976,174) (4,383,203)

Disallowance U/s. 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (1,684,899) {(1,700,550) (1,681,558)

Deferred Lease expenses (309,442) (247,554) (123,777)

Provisioning of Straight lining of Rent (79,987)

Deferred tax Liabilities

Marked to Market Value of Investment 5,575,196 9,604,243 8,350,267

Notional Interest on Security Deposit 309,442 235,094 111,722

Deferred tax expense/(income)

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1,488,195 4,915,059 2,193,464

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
INR INR INR

Deferred tax assets (4,396,443) (4,924,278) {6,268,525)

Deferred tax liabilities 5,884,638 9,839,337 8,461,989
LDeferred tax Assets/(liabilities), net 1,488,195 4,915,059 2,193,464

Reflected in the profit & Loss account as follows:

[2{ mumeAl |2 )]

W
ST

N,

Profit & Loss Account T
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
INR INR

Deferred tax Assets
Leave Encashment 574,754 1,407,029
Disallowance U/s. 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 15,651 (18,992)
Deferred Lease expenses (61,888) (123,777)
Provisioning of Straight lining of Rent - 79,987
Deferred tax Liabilities
Marked to Market Value of Investment (4,029,047) 1,253,977
Notional Interest Qngékcp_[méﬁqgosit 74,348 123,372
Deferred tax exgéjﬁ}:e'7(incor1 413 B (3,426,183) 2,721,596 |
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Reconciliation of deferred tax Assets/ (liabilities) (net):

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

INR INR
Opening balance as of 1 April 4,915,059 2,193,464
Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in profit or loss (3,426,865) 2,721,596
Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in OCl -
Closing balance as at 31 March 1,488,195 4,915,059

26. Details regarding Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8" Nov 2016 to 30" Dec

2016 is provided in annexure below:

Particulars SBN’s Other Total
Denaminations
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 14000.00 981.00 14981.00
(+) Permitted receipts Nil 40000.00* 40000.00
(-) Permitted payments Nil 23272.00* 23272.00
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 14000.00 Nil 14000.00
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 Nil 17709.00 17709.00
(*)This pertains to withdrawals from bank and payment made thereof.
27. Details of CSR expenditure: (Amt. in Rs.)
a) Gross amount to be spent during the year March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
14,32,925/- 15,76,000/-
b) Amount spent during the year ending on In Cash Yet to be paid in Total
March 31, 2017 cash
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nil
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 14,32,925/- Nil 14,32,925/-
b) Amount spent during the year ending on In Cash Yet to be paid in Total
March 31, 2016 cash
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nil
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 16,00,000/- Nil 16,00,000/-
28. Retirement Benefit
Disclosure in respect of Employee Benefits pursuant to IND AS 19
As at As at
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
13,536,858 11,416,466
13,328,283 9,665,636
208,575 1,750,830




Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements as on 31st March 2017

Amounts recognised in Employee Benefits Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of

Gratuity
Current Service cost 2,341,273 1,861,175
Interest on net defined benefit liability / (assets) 97,565 (286,543)
Net Gratuity Cost 2,438,838 1,574,632
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) for the year
Opening amount recognised in OCl outside profit & loss A/c. 779,019 -
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (583,479) 258,891
Acturial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - (145,425)
Acturial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 668,756 229,028
Acturial changes arising from changes in experience assumptions (284,543) 436,525
Closing amount recognised in OCI outside profit and loss account 579,753 779,019
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Obligation and the Fair Value of the Plan Assets:
Change in net liability/ assets
Opening net defined benefit liability/ (assets) 1,750,830 (3,581,788)
Expense charged to profit and loss account 2,438,838 1,574,632
Amount recognised outside profit and loss account - OCl (199,266) 779,019
Employer Contributions (3,596,464) 2,387,825
Impact of Liability assumed or (settled) {185,363) 591,142
Closing net defined benefit liability / (asset) 208,575 1,750,830
Change in Present Value of the Obligations:
Opening Defined Benefit Obligations 11,416,466 8,392,578
Current Service Cost 2,341,273 1,861,175
Interest Cost 876,733 663,618
Acturial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - (145,425)
Acturial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 668,756 229,028
Acturial changes arising from changes in experience assumptions (284,543) 436,525
Liabilities Settled {185,363) 591,142
Benefits Paid (1,296,464) (612,175)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligations 13,536,858 11,416,466
Change in Fair Value of the Plan Assets:
Opening Fair Value of the Plan Assets 9,665,636 11,974,366
Interest Income on plan assets 779,168 950,161
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 583,479 (258,891)
Contributions by the Employer 3,596,464 (2,387,825)
Assets acquired / (settled) - -
Benefits Paid (1,296,464) {(612,175)
13,328,283 9,665,636

Closing Fair Value of the Plan Assets ’—/

Funding Arrangement and Policy

o, 818 money contributed by the Company{ﬁ.){;%‘ﬁuqd to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested.
I,-’.;'I i \Q]l% trustees of the plan are requxred t@"‘ﬁve h@\ﬁds as per the prescribed pattern of investments laid
;{H}iu 19

o

n the income tax rules for suc(é Eproved sC e’n\ s. Due to the restrictions in the type of investments
can be held by the fund, it isi{io wﬂé&?@arto,efpltcmy follow an asset-liability matching strategy to
nage risk actively. e /5’/
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There is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully pre fund the liability of the Plan. The
Company’s philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its own liquidity and tax position as well as level of

underfunding of the plan.

Estimated amount of contribution expected to be paid to the fund during the annual period being after the
Balance Sheet date is Rs. 20,00,000/- (Previous Year : Rs. 10,00,000).

Maturity Profile of defined benefit obligation

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1,640,035 352,603
Between 2 and 5 years 1,278,917 3,103,654
Between 6 and 9 years 6,236,116 5,301,508
10 years and Above 20,415,502 20,123,707

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 10.35 years (Previous Year 10.17

Years)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date

Discount Rate 7.25% 7.80%
Salary escalation

Salary escalation - Staff 7.00% 7.00%
Estimated Rate of Return on the Plan Assets 7.25% 7.80%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below :

Increase / decrease on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year

i) 50 bps increase in discount rate
if) 50 bps decrease in discount rate

Sensitivity Analysis Method

-5.01%
5.36%

-4.91%
5.27%

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation
and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no
changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity

analyses.
Disaggreagation of Plan Assets Period Ended 31st March 2017

Quoted Value Non Quoted Total

Value

Government debt instruments - 1,586,841 1,586,841
Other debt instruments - 54,857 54,857
Insurer Managed Funds - 7,960,942 7,960,942
Others - 3,725,643 3,725,643
Grand Total - 13,328,283 13,328,283
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Disaggreagation of Plan Assets Period Ended 31st March 2016

Quoted Value Non Quoted Total

Value

Government debt instruments = 2,027,746 2,027,746
Other debt instruments s 38,732 38,732
Insurer Managed Funds - 5,352,821 5,352,821
Others - 2,246,337 2,246,337
Grand Total s 9,665,636 9,665,636

There are no amount included in the Fair value of Plan Assets for:
i) Company's own financial instrument
i) Property occupied by or other assets used by the Company

The details of the Company's Defined Benefit Plans in respect of the Company owned Provident Fund

Trust
Contribution to Company-Owned Employees' Provident Fund Trust 4,025,873 3,830,647
Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Defined Contribution Plans —
Contribution To Superannuation Fund 2,459,110 2,282,236
Contribution to Employee Pension Scheme 173,750 183,750

29. Financial Instrument- Accounting Classification & Fair Value Measurements

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values.

Carrying value Fair value
March 31, March 31, March 31,
March 31, 2017 2016 April 1, 2015 2017 2016 April 1, 2015
Financial assets
Investments 352,751,412 341,193,257 293,361,578 352,751,412 341,193,257 293,361,578
Security
Deposit 4,876,300 4,464,249 4,091,107 4,876,300 4,490,207 4,098,952
357,627,712 345,657,506 297,452,685 357,627,712 345,683,464 297,460,530

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, other financial assets and other
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
(TFALL and assumptions were used toesy ate the fair values:

E .}w, \&Ol g C'
" S
p::}i;' The F c\l':-%- lues of the Company»' fm’ere—sIB\ (' borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using
il :wa”}l fte that reflects the |§suer §m§6<g Q’ owing rate and lending rate as at the end of the reporting period.
SNy .

=

Do
NE_YS \ON w S
i '1 “Posé/



Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements as on 31st March 2017

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Date of valuation Total  Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

As at March 31, 2017

Financial assets

Investments* March 31, 2017 352,751,412 - 352,751,412

Security Deposit® March 31, 2017 4,876,300 4,876,300
As at March 31, 2016

Financial assets

Investments™ March 31, 2016 341,193,257 - 341,193,257

Security Deposit? March 31, 2016 4,490,207 4,490,207
As at April 1, 2015

Financial assets

Investments* April 1, 2015 293,361,578 - 293,361,578

Security Deposit® April 1, 2015 4,098,952 4,098,952

Note:
(*) Fair value of Investment in Unquoted Mutual Funds done based on NAV of Units
(*) Fair value of security deposit is done based on discounted cash flow.

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise trade and other payables and liability to employees dues. The
Company principal financial assets include Investments into mutual funds and cash and cash equivalents that are
derived directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees
the management of these risks. The Company has formulated suitable Risk Control Matrix (RCM) to provide an
assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. All Investment activities for risk management purposes are carried
out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that
surplus assets are invested in low risk financial instruments with high liquidity. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, curregﬁ\"&r\i\s}k‘%ﬁdﬁ}h?r price

risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by mar(é;ﬁ/rs/k for Mq(ué@ Fund
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"-5:,"'.{-” '11':{'::1‘; in market interest rates. As interest rates increase, the market price of the mutual fund experiences a
4 e th.{_"'_ n in value and a reduction in yields of underlying securities result in an increase in value of the Mutual
afd. The Company does not have any debt resulting in any direct impact of interest rates changes on profitability.
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The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio in short term and liquid mutual fund derivative
instruments.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not have any foreign currency assets or liabilities and hence
there is no need for any foreign currency hedges.

Credit risk

The Company gets its revenue in advance from the Fund that it manages. Credit risk is the risk that counterparty
will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, teading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its investment in Mutual funds. Since these are large entities regulated by
SEBI we do not perceive any credit risk on such investments.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the entity may not be able to meet its obligations from available resources. The
Company does not perceive any liquidity risk as investments are made in highly liquid schemes of a Mutual Fund.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the
same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry. In order to avoid
excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the
maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed by
investing in scheme of a Mutual fund having a diversified portfolio in a particular asset class rather than a specific
investment on its own.

31. Significant Judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

i) Fair Value of Certain Financial Instrument (Refer Note 29): Fair value of Investment in Unquoted Mutual
Funds done based on NAV of Units.

ii) Employee Benefit (Refer Note 28):
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
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iii)

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates and yields of government bonds and other debt securities.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 2.2.h):

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) has been restated at fair value as on April 01, 2015 and net WDV as on
March 31, 2015 has been assumed to be the fair value as on that date.

Depreciation has been provided on PPE based on Original cost and an estimate of the useful life of PPE as
explained in Note 2.2.b.

Taxes

Deferred tax liability are recognised for timing difference in various head of Assets and Liabilities to the

- extent that this will be set off against future tax expense in subsequent years. In addition the company is

of the opinion that Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit of Rs. 19,69,205/- for Financial Year 2016-17 can
be available for set off against actual tax liability under normal provision of Income Tax Act in subsequent
years.
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Note: 32
DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS) 101 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2016 and 01/04/2015:-

First Time Adoption of IND AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2017, are the first, the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the periods up
to and including the year ended 31st March 2016, the company prepared its financial statement in accordance with the accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the companies Act 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 (indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the company has prepared its financial statements to comply with Ind AS for the year ending 31st March 2017,together with comparative
date as at and for the year ended 31st March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial
statements , the company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1st April 2015, the company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the
principal adjustments made by the company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance state as at 1st April 2015 and the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

Exemptions:

Ind AS 101 allows first time adopters certain exemptions from the restrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the
following exemptions:

) The Company has elected to apply previous GAAP carrying amount of its property, plant and equipments as deemed cost as on the date of transition to Ind AS,
after making necessary adjustments.

i} Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this assessment should
be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However, the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all arrangements based
for embedded leases based on conditions in place as at the date of transition.

ii)  The Company has designated unquoted Mutual Fund units held at 1 April 2015 as fair value through Profit & Loss account
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The following reconciliations provides the effect of transition to ind AS from IGAAP in accordance with Ind AS 101

1. Equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016
2. Net profit for the year ended March 31, 2016

Balance sheet as at March 31 2016

Opening Balance sheet as at April 1 2015

Note Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
=== Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
| ASSETS
(1} Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 6,370,487 6,370,487 4,603,002 - 4,603,002
(i) Loans - - 4,876,300 (785,193} 4,091,107
(b) Deferred tax asset (net) G 4,677,535 (4,677,535) - 6,144,748 (6,144,748) -
(c) Advance tax {net) 16,091,762 - 16,091,762 8,043,230 3,167,212 11,210,442
(d) Other non-current-assets - - 374,366 374,366
27,139,784 (4,677,535) 22,462,249 23,667,280 (3,388,362) 20,278,918
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments: Other Investments A 312,144,945 29,048,312 341,193,257 268,105,955 25,255,623 293,361,578
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,712,422 - 1,712,422 2,261,744 - 2,261,744
(iii) Loans B 11,104,174 {412,051) 10,692,123 4,299,985 - 4,299,985
(b) Current tax assets {net) . - - 3,191,847 (3,191,847) -
(c) Other current assets B 3,728,870 374,366 4,103,236 2,794,575 374,366 3,168,941
328,690,411 29,010,626 357,701,038 280,654,105 22,438,142 303,092,248
Total assets 355,830,195 24,333,091 380,163,286_ 304,321,385 19,049,780 323,371,165
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 35,000,000 - 35,000,000 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
(b) Other Equity Retained Earnings (G 274,591,186 19,418,033 294,009,219 229,380,527 16,880,951 246,261,478
Total equity 309,591,186 19,418,033 329,009,219 264,380,527 16,880,951 281,261,478
Liability
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) G - 4,915,059 4,915,059 - 2,193,464 2,193,464
- 4,915,059 4,915,059 2,193,464 2,193,464
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 32,037,678 - 32,037,678 24,964,852 24,964,852
(i) Other Financial Liabilities = - - -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 3,448,977 3,448,977 1,441,731 1,441,731
{c) Provisions 10,752,354 10,752,354 13,509,640 - 13,509,640
(d) Liability for Current Tax 24,635 (24,635)
46,239,009 - 46,239,009 39,940,858 (24,635} 39,916,223
Total liabilities 46,239,009 4,915,059 51,154,067 39,940,858 2,168,829 42,109,687
Total Equity and Liabilities 355,830,195 24,333,092 380,163,287 304,321,385 19,049,780 323,371,165
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Reconciliation of Statement of Profit & Loss as per previously reported under IGAAP to IND AS

In Rs.
Year Ended March 31, 2016
Note IGAAP Effect of transition Ind AS
to IND-AS
I Revenue from Operations 203,257,647 - 203,257,647
I Other Income D 18,097,991 4,165,830 22,263,821
Total Income 221,355,638 4,165,830 225,521,468
Il EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense E 123,081,778 (717,828) 122,363,950
Other expenses F 32,661,293 374,367 33,035,660
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,193,306 - 2,193,306
Finance Cost g
Total Expenses 157,936,377 (343,461) 157,592,916
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax from continuing 63,419,260 4,509,291 67,928,552
operations
IV Profit/ (Loss) before tax 63,419,260 4,509,291 67,928,552
Current Tax 16,741,388 - 16,741,388
Deferred Tax (Net of MAT Credit, if any) G 1,467,213 1,254,382 2,721,595
Tax Expense: 18,208,601 1,254,382 19,462,983
Business attributable to participating policyholers 45,210,659 3,254,909 48,465,569
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on retirement benefits (717,828)
Other Comprehensive Income for the period - (717,828)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 45,210,659 3,254,909 47,747,741
Reconciliation ot Total Equity tor the year ended 31 Viarch 2016
Particulars Note March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Share capital 35,000,000 35,000,000
Profit and Loss account 274,591,186 229,380,527
Total Equity as per Indian GAAP 309,591,186 264,380,527
Opening IND AS Impact (b/f from previous year) 16,880,950 -
First time IND AS adoption impact:
- Financial assets - Fair Value of Investment A 3,792,689 25,255,623
- Finacial assets- Amortization of Security Deposit B (1,226) (36,459)
- Deferred tax adjustment on above items (1,254,381) (8,338,214)
Total impact due to conversion under IND AS 19,418,033 16,880,950
Total Equity as on date under IND AS 329,009,219 281,261,477
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Explanation for reconcilation as previously reported under IGAAP to IND AS

Current Investment
Investment in mutual funds has been recognised at fair value as per ind AS 109. Under Indian GAAP investments were held at cost or fair value which
ever is lower.

Loans & Other Current Assets

Security deposits has been recognised at amotised cost as per Ind AS 109 . Difference between cost and carrying value as per previous gaap has been
recognised as deferred rent expenses. Under previous Indian GAAP security deposit was valued at cost.

Other Equity Retained Earnings
a) Adjustments to retained earnings and other comprehensive income has been made in accordance with Ind AS, for the above mentioned line items.

b) In addition, as per Ind-AS 19, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized in the
statement of profit and loss under IGAAP.

Other Income

a) Interest Income is recognised on interest free security deposit which is recognised at amotised cost as per the provisions of IND AS 109. Under
previous Indian GAAP Deposit were interest free hence no interest was accounted.

b) Current Investments are carried at fair value, the impact of mark to market has been recognised as income under Ind AS. Under previous Indian
GAAP Investments were recognised as cost or fair value whichever is lower.

Employee Benefits Expenses

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS ,the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actual basis. Under
Indian GAAP, the entire cost,including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit and loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan
assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised in balance sheet through other comprehensive
income.

Other Expenses

The effect of amortisation of deferred lease expenes on security deposit is shown in expenses. Under Indian GAAP security deposit were recognised at
cost instead of amortised value due to which no lease expenditure were accounted in profit & loss account.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach
has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for
such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate
component of equity.
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33. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged to confirm to the current year’s presentation,
wherever necessary.

As per our attached report of even date
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